ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE TRANSPCORTATI ON STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 16, 2010
1: 05 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy W1l son, Chair
Representative Craig Johnson, Vice Chair
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representati ve Cat hy Engstrom Miunoz
Representative Tanm e WI son
Representati ve Max G uenberg
Representati ve Pete Petersen

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 357
"An Act relating to the sale of Iland owned by the Al aska
Railroad that is not needed for railroad purposes.™

- HEARD & HELD

HOUSE Bl LL NO. 267
“"An Act relating to travel by snow nmachine within five mles of
the right-of-way of the Janes Dalton H ghway."

- HEARD & HELD; ASSI GNED TO SUBCOW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO. 257
"An Act relating to prohibiting the use of cellular telephones
when driving a notor vehicle; and providing for an effective
date."

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COWM TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 357

SHORT TITLE: AK RAI LROAD CORP. LAND SALES
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) STOLTZE

02/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2010



02/ 19/ 10 (H) TRA
03/ 16/ 10 (H) TRA AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 17

BILL: HB 267
SHORT TI TLE: SNOW MACHI NE USE | N DALTON HWY CORRI DOR
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) KELLY, NEUVAN

01/ 08/ 10 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 8/ 10

01/ 19/ 10 (H READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 19/ 10 (H TRA, RES

03/ 11/ 10 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

03/ 11/ 10 (H Heard & Hel d

03/ 11/ 10 (H M NUTE( TRA)

03/ 16/ 10 (H TRA AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 17

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL STOLTZE

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as prine sponsor of HB 357.

JIM KUBI TZ, Vice President

Real Estate and Facilities

Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC)

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 357.

HANK BARTCS, Representative

Rai|l Safety and Devel opnment G oup (RSDG

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 357.

DON LOVNELL Presi dent

Al aska Transportation Consultants

Rai|l Safety and Devel opnment G oup (RSDG

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 357.

BONNI E WOLDSTAD
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 357.

DON CALLAHAN, Public Relations Chair, Ice Al aska;

Menber, Rail Safety and Devel opment G oup (RSDG

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 357.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2010



RI CHARD FAULKNER, President, Steel Fabrication
President, Al aska Railroad Leasehol ders Associ ation
Anchor age, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 357.
PAT GAMBLE, President and CEO

Al aska Rail road Corporation (ARRC)

Anchor age, Al aska.
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT:

MARY SI ROKY, Legislative Liaison
O fice of the Comm ssioner

Testified during the discussion of HB 357.

Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF)

Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
di scussi on of HB 267.

BRI AN PERSON, Ph.D., WIldlife Biologist
Department of W dlife Managenent
Nort h Sl ope Bor ough

Testified and answered questions during the

Barrow, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

Testified in opposition to HB 267.

LI SA HUGHES, Legi sl ative Liaison

Nort hern Al aska Environment a

Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

REBECCA BENSON
Tok, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

ROBERT CAYWOOD
Wasill a, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

STEVE FLORY
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

W LLI AM LANG
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:

P.J. SIMN

Fai r banks, Al aska

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE

Cent er

Testified in opposition to HB 267.

Testified in opposition to HB 267.

Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

Testified in opposition to HB 267.

- 3- March 16, 2010



PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition of 267.

JUNE RECOFF
W seman, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

DERRI CK M LLER, Staff

Representative Mke Kelly

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the joint prine
sponsor during the discussion of HB 267.

M CHELLE DEVAUL
Fai r banks, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

KENNETH BARBER
Wasill a, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 267.

CODY STRATHE
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

CHAD DI ESI NGER, Manager

Toolik Field State Institute of Arctic Biology

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

BARRY VHI TEHI LL
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

TAQUI LI K HEPA, Director

Departnent of WIdlife Managenent

Nort h Sl ope Borough ( NSB)

Barrow, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

DI RK NI CKI SH, Owner/ Oper at or

Coyote Air

Col df oot, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

WADE WLLIS
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2010



BERNI E H CKER, W senman, Al aska
PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

WYN MENEFEE, Chief of Operations

D vision of Mning, Land, and Water

Department of Natural Resources (DNR)

Anchor age, Al aska-

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

JOY W EBE
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 267.

DANE CRONLEY, Executive Director

Sportsnmen for Fish and Wldlife

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified during the discussion of HB 267.

CHARLES DERRI CK
Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 267.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

1:05: 43 PM

CHAIR PEGGY WLSON called the House Transportation Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:05 p.m Representatives P.
W1l son, Johnson, Petersen, and T. WIson were present at the
call to order. Represent ati ves Johansen, G uenberg, and Minoz
arrived as the neeting was in progress.

1: 06: 42 PM

HB 357- AK RAI LROAD CORP. LAND SALES

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the first order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 357, "An Act relating to the sale of I|and
owned by the Alaska Railroad that is not needed for railroad
pur poses. "

1: 07: 01 PM
REPRESENTATI VE BILL STOLTZE, Al aska State Legislature, related

t hat many private  businesses are frustrated wth the
unpredictability of the A aska Railroad Corporation's (ARRC

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2010



|lease ternms and the corporation's wunwillingness to rmake
i nvestmment inprovenents to their property. He said he thought
that the ARRC may need "a little bit of help interfacing with
the private sector on these |lease holdings." Sone
muni ci palities have expressed interest in the bill since they
enbrace private sector activity. He paraphrased from his
sponsor statement, which read as follows [original punctuation
provi ded] :

To spur econom c devel opnent throughout the state,
House Bill 357 adds a fourth clause to the existing
| anguage governi ng how the Al aska Railroad Corporation
may di spose of |and. House Bill 357 wll enable the
railroad to sell land that is not needed for essential
rail road purposes. This bill does not ask for any
irresponsi ble disposal of l|land, as the sale nust be
initiated by the board of directors on tw conditions.
The first condition is that the land is not essentia
to railroad operations, and the second condition is
that the sale is in the best interest of the state of
Al aska.

As support has shown, current |easeholders are very
unhappy with the inability to purchase their |eased
properties from the railroad. In general real estate
dealings, private purchases are made in nutually
beneficial sales. House Bill 357 encourages these
sales after determnation by the board of directors of
the railroad |ooks at each sale wth the overal
benefit to the state of Al aska as the key driver. Not
only wll the private sector benefit from this
addition to state law, the railroad wll also have
increased ability to make decisions regarding their
overall real estate portfolio.

The sale and relationship of private and public |ands
are vital to the economic gromh of the state of
Al aska. | ask for your consideration and support of
House Bill 357 to pronote Al askan growth through the
diversification of |and ownership, increasing the tax
base of the state, and encouraging responsible
devel opnent of Al askan | and.

1: 10: 25 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE characterized the bill "as a permssive

bill." The commttee may wi sh to make changes to HB 357, he
st at ed.
1:11: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whet her the |land would be sold and
if proceeds would go to the ARRC for further developnent or to
pur chase equi pnent.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered his intent for the proceeds to be
retained by the ARRC for its operations.

1:12: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON referred to page 2, lines 1-7 and asked
whet her this would require a conpetitive bid process or if he
coul d explain the process.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE related his intent that the |essee who
has an investnment would have the first right of refusal.

1:13:17 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked whether the land is state land and if that
is allowable.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE responded that if any restrictions exist
the bill drafters did not flag the issue during the drafting
process. He offered that this is his best first effort.

1:14: 20 PM

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON interpreted that she did not know
whether it is allowable to offer the first right of refusal to
| easehol ders of state |and. She suggested that question should
be answered by the Departnent of Law (DCL).

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he wi shed he knew the inner workings
of the ARRC. The ARRC s budget is not subject to state review
He stated that the ARRC s executive payroll is not aligned to
the ARRC s econom c grow h. He also related his desire for the
ARRC to run nore like a private business in instances in which

it is involved in the private sector. He remarked that the
breadth of testinmony from | ocal governnent and a consortium of
business and industry have endorsed this bill. However, he

mai ntained that he did not solicit the letters in nenbers'

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2010



packets. He offered that these "folks were yearning for sone
type of bill like this." Sinply by holding this hearing the
commttee has informed the public that "the private sector has
friends" in Juneau who are responsive, he stated.

1: 16: 08 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked whether this bill would include
easenents crossing private property if the easenent is no |onger
in use by the railroad.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE said he did not know but his staff would
check into it. He suggested that nany conplicated arrangenents
with the ARRC and ownership i ssues exist.

1:16: 41 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked whether the ARRC is selling |and without
giving its |l essees the right of first refusal.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered that the ARRC does not have a

consistent policy on |leases or sales. The ARRC has had
inconsistent policies with respect to |eases, he stated. He
recalled last vyear, during the course of working on another
bill, that the ARRC negotiated new | eases. He surm sed that the
ARRC reacts nore like a political organization than a business
organi zation. He said, "I don't know that | could say that they
have a consistent |ease policy and therein lies a lot of the
probl ens. I don't think we would like to have our individual

busi nesses subject to those vagaries."
1:17:45 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ asked for the nunber of |eases on the
ARRC s non-essential property.

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered that currently the ARRC holds
about 350 | eases. He was not certain how many of the | eases
fell into the category of essential property.

CHAIR P. WLSON asked how the ARRC acquired its | and.
REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE offered that the ARRC acquired its |and
in the md-1980s as a result of the federal Al aska Railroad

Transfer Act (ARTA) of 1982 and the subsequent state act, the
Al aska Railroad Act.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2010



1:19: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE STOLTZE, in response to Representative Minoz,
responded that wunder the state's Executive Budget Act, the
| egi sl ature does not have access to ARRC budget information. He
mai ntai ned that nunerous nenbers of the public can testify to
explain their relationships and frustrations with the Al aska
Rai | road Cor porati on.

1: 21: 30 PM

JIM KUBITZ, Vice President, Real Estate and Facilities, Al aska
Rai |l road Corporation (ARRC), stated that he has worked for the
ARRC for twelve years. He provided a little background
information. In 1985, the state purchased the railroad fromthe
federal governnent and received about 36,000 acres of | and. He
described the land as about one-third right-of-way, where the

trains run, one-third rail and operations vyard, one-third
"reserve land" or land that is available to lease. The ARRC is
required by law to lease its land for fair narket val ue. He
remar ked that when the state bought the railroad, the federa
government was | o0sing noney. The state wanted to give the
Al aska Railroad Corporation (ARRC) an opportunity to succeed and
live under its own profits. Thus, the land nmust be |eased at

fair market value, noting there are a few exceptions.
1:23:23 PM

MR. KUBI TZ explained that the ARRC does not always know whet her
it will need |and. Currently, projects to expand the yards in
Fai r banks, Anchorage, and Whittier are underway to neet custoner
needs and inprove the dock operations. Sonetimes the ARRC nust
buy out tenants to expand its operations. He said, "W do not
al ways have a crystal ball know ng exactly what could be defined
as essential railroad land since it does nove." For exanpl e,
the Anchorage International Airport has nunerous private tenants
but does not sell its |and. One big issue that sone tenants
have had is the requirenent that they nust pay property taxes on
the |eased |and. In 2004, the State Assessor advised the
Muni cipality of Anchorage that it nust charge fair market val ue
rent for any leased land that is owed by a tax-free entity,
such as the ARRC Thus, for the first tinme in that area the
| essees had to pay property tax for the |[and. The tenants
previously were required to pay taxes on their buildings and
i nprovenents, but the new requirenent to add taxes on |eased
| and upset sonme of the tenants.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -9- March 16, 2010



1: 25: 00 PM
CHAIR P. WLSON asked for the duration of the ARRC s | eases.

MR KUBI TZ answered that the |eases range from 20 to 40 years.
Tenants suddenly had to pay property taxes on |eased |and on
whi ch they had held long-term | eases, he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked who nmade the determnation and
asked for the statutory background.

MR. KUBI TZ related that the State Assessor made the
determ nati on. He offered to provide the |egal opinion issued
by the Departnent of Law to the conmttee. Utimately, the
state's Attorney GCeneral required the |essees to pay tax on
| and.

1:25:56 PM

REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ asked whether the assessnment is on the |and
that is |leased or if the assessnment is on all ARRC parcels.

MR KUBITZ related that the tenant |eases are subject to
assessnment, but the non-leased parcels are not assessed. He
explained that the State Assessor does have sone flexibility.
He offered that a brand new 35-year |ease would be assessed at
full fair market value on the property. However, if only two
years remained on the |lease, the State Assessor would charge a
much reduced rate for the land portion of the |ease.

1: 26: 44 PM

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Chair WIson, explained that the ARRC
is tax exenpt. He pointed out that advantages exist for parties
who |ease |and. He explained that the tax cap cannot go
increase nore than 35 percent each five-year period. The ARRC
also has a floor on its |eases, which neans the tax rates do not
decr ease. However, the ARRC is currently reviewing its |easing
policy given the econony. He commented that the ARRC does have
a public | easing policy.

1:27:48 PM
REPRESENTATI VE MUNQZ related that other |eased property is not
charged property tax. She related that if the |eases are

conparable to other |eases whether the ARRC takes property taxes
into account when setting the rate.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -10- March 16, 2010



MR. KUBITZ responded that only the value of property is
considered. Thus, if property is valued at $1 million, the ARRC
woul d charge eight percent rent on $1 mllion. The ARRC is al so
not involved with inprovenents and the appraiser nust appraise
the land as though it is vacant | and.

1: 28: 37 PM

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Chair P. WIson, related that the
ARRC hires an independent appraiser to determne the |and val ue.

REPRESENTATI VE MUNOZ asked whether all the |lease terns are set
at eight percent.

MR. KUBI TZ answered that the interest rate on | eases ranges from
8 percent to 10 percent, with 9 percent for waterfront and 10

percent for conmercial property. The bulk of the ARRC | eases
are set at 8 percent. He stated that the ARRC follows standard
procedures for setting its interest rates. In further response

to Chair P. WIlson, he responded that the ARRC has published its
| easing policies, which are sonetinmes adjusted. He stated that
currently, due to the downturn in the econony, the ARRC is
considering elimnating the floor, but traditionally the |ease
rates have stayed fl at.

1: 30: 08 PM

MR. KUBITZ stated that the ARRC indemifies its tenants for
contam nation since the ARRC has been around for 85 years. The
ARRC does not hold its tenants responsible for contam nation
unl ess the tenant contam nated the property.

1: 30: 29 PM

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Representative Johnson, explained if
a person were to purchase ARRC property that it would depend on
the structure of the real estate agreenment as to whether
i ndemmi fication would be included in the terns. He offered that
any potential buyer should perform due diligence, have the
ground tested and if a problem exists that the party should hold
di scussions to determine who wll be responsible. This would
all be covered in the sales contract, he stated.

1: 31: 03 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -11- March 16, 2010



REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON recalled several years ago a battery
conpany went out of business. He asked M. Kubitz to describe a
simlar scenario with respect to the railroad.

MR. KUBITZ recalled the site nentioned is a Superfund Site under
control by the Environnental Protection Agency (EPA). He
recalled that the site usage is restricted. He further recalled
that this site was capped and a list of restrictions would apply
to the property use. He was unsure if sonmeone would want to buy
the property, but he related that iif a sale did occur,
di scussions on contam nation would be part of the due diligence
process.

1: 32: 15 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON speculated that the ARRC would do its part to
protect and inform any potential buyers.

MR. KUBITZ responded that professionals would perform tests to
determ ne any contam nation. He said he does not want to | eave
inpression that all the ARRC property has environmental issues.
The ARRC is diligent about identifying any issues wth its
property, but woul d  not necessarily know about recent
environmental issues on |eased |and. He characterized the ARRC
as know edgeabl e about its property and advised nenbers that the
ARRC has a good file on hand for each of its properties.

1: 33: 26 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether anyone has reviewed the
cost of owing versus leasing ARRC land given the new
interpretation on property taxes.

MR, KUBI TZ answered that the ARRC Board has policies in place
He offered that the ARRC perforned a market analysis and that
ei ght percent is a standard interest rate for |eased property.

1:34:37 PM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked when t he property t ax

interpretation was adopted and whether the market analysis was
performed prior to when the tax policy was adopted.

MR KUBITZ related that it occurred at about the sane tine. In
2004, the tax letter was received from the State Assessor. The
ARRC continually reviews the market, he stated. He mai nt ai ned

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -12- March 16, 2010



his belief that the market study was done at about the sane
time.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether he could provide any
exanples of other comunities or states that charge eight
percent interest in addition to the property tax.

MR. KUBITZ related that ARRC tenants have always paid taxes on
their building. He commented that the property tax on land is
based on a decreasing rate scale. He explained that the ARRC
also requires its tenants to follow local state and federal
| aws.

1: 36: 34 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked whether the Minicipality of Anchorage
(M2A) was trying to find nore ways to bring in revenue w thout
rai sing taxes.

MR. KUBI TZ acknow edged that the MOA has been very successful
1:37: 08 PM

MR, KUBITZ, in response to Representative Johnson, reiterated
that the State Assessor wote a letter to Minicipality of
Anchorage referencing the Departnment of Law s | egal opinion that
the MOA had to assess property.

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Chair P. WIlson, related that the
communities have the option on whether to assess taxes. He
stated that Anchorage and Fairbanks assesses taxes on ARRC

property.
1: 38: 13 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked for the percentage of ARRC
property that is currently vacant.

VR. KUBI TZ explained that the ARRC owns one parcel of
approximately 5,000 acres that does not have tenant. Thus, one
of its largest parcels is vacant. He offered his belief that
about 20 percent of ARRC property is under |ease, Dbut
approximately 80 percent of the revenue from ARRC s real estate
is derived from 600 acres in Anchorage at Ship Creek. The rest
of the leases are primarily located in Fairbanks, Talkeetna,
Seward, and Wiittier.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -13- March 16, 2010



1: 39: 07 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked if the ARRC sold property whether
it would provide nore revenue for the ARRC over tine.

MR. KUBITZ related that a parcel valued at $1 mllion |eased at

8 percent would provide $80,000 in revenue annually. If the
ARRC deposited $1 mllion, it may earn approximtely $20,000 a
year. Thus, selling ARRC s |land would represent a big decrease

in annual incone for the railroad.
1:40: 07 PM

MR, KUBITZ, in response to Chair P. WIson, explained that
during the economic downturn the real estate inconme "tides the
ARRC over". He stated that the ARRC earns about $18 mllion in
| eases and reinvests it. He related sonme investnments are made
on behalf of tenants, such as water and sewer installation and
dock enhancenents to create efficiencies.

1: 41: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked of the 80 percent of |eases, how
many of the ARRC | eases in Anchorage will expire within the next
five years.

MR. KUBITZ offered his belief that not many |eases wll expire.
He said that typically nost | essees holding a 30-year |ease wll
renegotiate the | ease about ten years out. He related that the
| argest ARRC custoner is Flint Hlls in Anchorage and the second
| argest custoner is Lynden Transport. He stated that the ARRC
renews its | eases on a continual basis.

1: 42: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JCOHNSON asked whether the lessees wll renew
their |eases closer to the end date of the lease in order to
avoi d payi ng hi gher property taxes.

MR. KUBITZ said he was unsure. He characterized the ARRC s
custoners as sophisticated custonmers who renew their | eases when
10 to 15 years remain on the |ease. He comented that nost
| eases are renewed.

1:43: 44 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -14- March 16, 2010



MR. KUBI TZ explained at tines ARRC nay need to let tenants know
a lease will not be renewed in the event that the ARRC needs the
land for its railroad operations. He stated that the ARRC
currently holds 350 active long-term |eases and 900 permts,
which are for | eases under 5 years in duration

1: 44: 19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked how di sposing ARRC s property woul d
affect the ARRC s bonding status and whether it would have a
negative effect.

MR. KUBI TZ answered that selling ARRC s | and probably woul d have
a negative effect. He comented that the ARRC produces an
annual report with audited financial information. The ARRC al so
borrows funds based on |ease revenue incone. For exanple, the
ARRC recently borrowed $1 mllion and pledged its |ease revenue
for | oan repaynent. He anticipated that if suddenly the ARRC s
portfolio of |leases were to shrink, it could adversely affect
the interest rate. He reiterated the |ease incone is used for
property inprovenents, but sonetines the ARRC will borrow funds
to conpl ete necessary project inprovenents.

1: 45: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whet her federal funding would slow
down projects.

MR. KUBITZ offered that the ARRC receives sone federal railroad
funds based on a passenger transportation formula, but the
federal dollars are restricted to passenger transportation. He
stated that the ARRC could build new depot or buy a new
passenger car, but could not spend the federal funds on real
est at e. He restated that the federal funding "cones with a |ot
of strings."

1:46: 41 PM

MR. KUBITZ stated that the ARRC s tenants have access to the
Board of Directors. The Board has the final say on |eases. The
ARRC uses noney to partner with tenants to inprove the plant.
In 2002, the ARRC raised the ability to |lease land from 35 years
to 55 years. The legislature agreed to the change. The plan
has been to ask the legislature for the ability to increase sone
| eases to 95-year |eases for those seeking long-term | eases. He
offered that |and | ease paynents are tax deductible. Thus, many
tenants would never consider buying their |and. In further

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 15- March 16, 2010



response to Representative Johnson, he stated that the appraised
val ue is the highest anpbunt that the | and can be assessed.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON rel ated that if a tenant had 2 years |eft
on a 95-year |ease, he/she would pay less in property taxes.

MR. KUBI TZ agr eed.

1:48: 46 PM

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Chair P. WIson, explained the tenant
typically wll approach the ARRC and ask to extend his/her
| ease.

MR KUBITZ related that passage of HB 357 mght start a
specul ation spree because the land is state-owned I and. For
exanple a person could lease land in April, purchase it in My,
and then "flip the land.” He suggested that this would not in
the ARRC s best interest. He said that he was unsure if that
type of specul ati on woul d happen.

1: 50: 05 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked whether the ARRC s land is owned by the
state.

MR. KUBITZ answered that the ARRC s land is state |and, but the
land is controlled, managed, and operated by the ARRC He al so
noted that the ARRC did not receive all of its federal transfer
| and as of 12 years ago. The ARRC is currently down to about 5
percent of the land remaining to be transferred.

CHAIR P. WLSON inquired as to whether the state allows first
right of refusal to its tenants on state |lands that are | eased.

MR KUBITZ said he did not know. He suggested that the
| egislature could pass a law if it chose to do so. He thought
it mght put "a cloud over it" to have first right of refusal
He explained that if the state |eased the land and then sold it,
the public may conplain that it was not aware that the state was
selling property. He thought if the state wanted to receive the
best value that the ARRC should sinmply sell the Iand. He
pointed out that the tenants are protected during sales since
the potential buyer cannot "kick" any tenants off the |eased
| and, but nust honor the | ease.

1:52: 18 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -16- March 16, 2010



MR. KUBITZ, in response to Representative Petersen, stated that
the 5 percent of 36,000 acres of federal transfer |and has not
yet been transferred to the state. He pointed out that the ARRC
has an exclusive easenment, which is one step below full fee on
the proposed transfer. He remarked it wll be "nice to get al
the land" fromthe federal governnent.

1: 52: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether the potential | and
designated for transfer is located in one location or if it is
spread out.

MR KUBITZ offered that "a fair amount of it" is located in
Anchor age. Much of the land is located along the right-of-way
near the inlet, he stated. He related that some confusion
exists since the 1964 earthquake noved sonme of the |and. He
characterized the l|and transfer process as a conplicated
process, but pointed out that the ARRC is working closely with

the Bureau of Land Managenent (BLM on the natter. Once the
process is finished and agreed to the agreenent will be sent to
Washington D.C. for signature and the ARRC wll receive the

| and, he rel at ed.
1: 53: 32 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN recalled that 5,000 acres of ARRC | and
is not |eased and asked whether this is land that poses
difficulties to | ease and asked whether the | and shoul d be sol d.

MR, KUBITZ said he did not think there was any benefit to sell
the land not currently |l eased. He stated that the |and does not
currently have utilities available, and the land is |ocated "50
mles from the closest power pole." He comented that a
"section house" is located on the land and the land has a
strategic value to the ARRC. He remarked that several uses have
al so been consi der ed.

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Chair P. WIson, answered that the
parcel does have road access. He reiterated that the ARRC s
incone stream could be affected if the land was sold. He al so
t hought that changing any existing ternms of the ARRC s real
estate contract could be problemtic. He offered his best
professional advice is the ARRC does not want to start the
precedent by selling property. He stated that the ARRC incone
is inportant and the ARRC s real estate is necessary for its

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -17- March 16, 2010



survival . He al so renmarked that 100 people were laid off |ast
year.

1: 55: 53 PM

MR. KUBITZ, in response to Representative T. WIson, responded
that the ARRC does not grant easenents.

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON asked whether the ARRC has any
mechani smto rel ease easenents it no | onger needs.

MR. KUBI TZ answered that any |and disposal or transfer of ARRC

property nust be approved by the |egislature. In further
response to Representative T. WIson, he said he was unsure if
this bill would allow the ARRC to do so. In response to Chair
Wl son, he agreed that currently the ARRC s Board of Directors
could decide to sell |and. | f such an instance arose, the ARRC
would ask the legislature for approval. This bill contains

speci al provisions, including that the person occupying the |and
woul d have the first right of refusal on the property.

1:57:12 PM

REPRESENTATIVE T. WLSON said she thought this bill allowed the
ARRC to sell the land without |egislative approval, and asked
whet her the ARRC would still need | egislative approval.

MR. KUBITZ agreed that this is state land and the |egislature
woul d need to approval any sale.

1:57: 24 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked whether the ARRC shares any
facilities with the Al aska Marine H ghway System (AVHS).

MR. KUBITZ responded that the ARRC leases land to the AVHS in
VWhittier.

MR KUBITZ, in further response to Representative Johnson,
advi sed that the AVHS could purchase the land it |eases fromthe
ARC, but he did not think it would do so. He explained that the
AVHS pre-paid a long-term |ease using federal funding. He
offered his belief that the current |ease is a 20-30 year | ease.

1:58: 55 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 18- March 16, 2010



HANK BARTOS, Representative, Rail Safety and Devel opnent G oup
(RSDG), offered his belief that a duplication of |and nanagenent
effort occurs in the state. He suggested that the |and
currently not used by ARRC should be transferred to DNR since
that agency could do a better job managing the | and. The DNR
could transfer any land as necessary. The Fairbanks North Star
Borough (FNSB) asked the legislature to transfer sone ARRC | and
not currently being used to the FNSB to inprove the Fairbanks
comunity.

CHAIR P. WLSON asked whether the organization has specifically
asked the ARRC to transfer the |and.

MR. BARTOS stated that the ARRC has been approached on nunerous
occasions to nove the ARRC operations south of town to relieve
traffic congestion. He characterized working with the ARRC as
working with an "800 pound gorilla."

2:01: 05 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON said she m sunderstood M. Bartos's issue.

MR. BARTOS explained that the matter is actually two separate

i ssues. In addition to relocating the ARRC rail yard to an
areas south of Anchorage, the FNSB would also |like the ARRC to
transfer land currently used by the ice park to the FNSB. I n

further response to Chair P. WIson, he agreed that the parce
used by the ice park is not used for ARRC operations. The |and
coul d be donated, traded, or sold to the FNSB, he sai d.

CHAIR P. WLSON related that the ARRC must conduct its operation
as a business. She would not like to see the ARRC conme to the
| egi sl ature and request additional operation funding.

MR. BARTOS pointed out that the land actually belongs to the
peopl e of Alaska and whether the revenue is derived from | and
use operations or is transferred to DNR and is nmanaged, it is
still state |and. Currently, a duplication of effort exists on
| and managenent since DNR and the ARRC both manage state | and.

CHAIR P. WLSON answered that the state is not the sane category
of | and.

MR BARTOS offered if the ARRC | and was transferred to one state

entity, that the process <could be streamined and nore
efficient.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -19- March 16, 2010



2:03:11 PM

DON LOVELL President, Alaska Transportation Consultants; Menber,
Rail Safety and Devel opnent Goup (RSDG, explained that the
Al aska Transportation Consultants is a non-profit group. He
stated that he supports the bill. Adding to M. Bartos's
testimony, he recomended that HB 357 be anended to transfer
land that is not essential to ARRC operations to the DNR He
explained that the DNR is the agency responsible for all state
land. He offered his belief that the ARRC does not operate very
well, but the DNR has held the long-term responsibility to
manage state | and.

2:04: 57 PM

BONNI E WOLDSTAD stated that her comments are directed to the
Ei el son spur line of the ARRC She asserted that the ARRC
currently encroaches on 10-12 acres of her property. She stated
that under the 1914 Homestead Act, the United States allowed
homesteaders to reserve rights for the railroad to traverse
property. In 1946, her famly applied for the property and
received a U. S. patented honestead. She said that her property
predates the railroad. Her ancestor was given 160 acres and in
1947 the railroad was built. She said that her ancestor
received the deed for the entire 160 acres. Subsequently the
state required the ARRC under ARTA, Section 1203, including
| anguage related to valid existing clains. She further asserted

that the patented honestead deed is a valid claim |In 1969, her
famly acquired the remainder of the honestead and has never
relinquished any property rights. She restated that her

property predates the railroad. Thus, her famly has continued
to assert their property rights. Under Section 1208 and 1209 of
the ARTA, a provision allows the governor to declare such
property as no |longer being used and allows the governor to
transfer that property to the property owner. In 2003, that
specific nechanism was repeal ed. Thus, property owners no
| onger have the nmeans to receive property under that provision

She related that Section 4200-4400 al so provides for a nmethod to
vacate easenents. Those ARTA provisions allow the ARRC to
vacate an easenent and allow the state to acquire the easenent.
Therefore, since the state has the easenent it should revert
back to the owner, she stated.

2:07: 50 PM

DON CALLAHAN, Public Relations Chair, Ice Al aska; Menber, Rail
Safety and Devel opnent Goup (RSDG, explained that since 2006

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 20- March 16, 2010



he has participated in the RSDG He offered that an
organi zation, |Ice Alaska, presents the best wnter event in
Fai rbanks for tourists and residents. Since 2006, he has been
working with the RSDG to relocate the railroad out of Fairbanks.
He characterized this as a frustrating experience since the ARRC
has continuously defeated his organization's efforts to relocate
t he ARRC. He asserted that this is a safety issue since the
rail yard is physically located in Fairbanks. As Chair, Ilce
Al aska, he has found the ARRC to be uncooperative. I ce Al aska
would like to trade the property to the FNSB for property the
ARRC could use for relocation. He understood Representative
Stoltze's frustration with the ARRC since he is also "thoroughly
frustrated.” He recalled working for a year to obtain an
easenent from the federal governnent when it owned the railroad.
When the state took ownership of the railroad, he expected the
ARRC to be community activists and to be supportive of the
community's interests. He suggested if the ARRC earns noney on
| and | eases to the detrinent of the community, that something is
wong wth their Dbusiness plan. The ARRC should be a
transportation entity and not a land entity. He said he also
di d not understand the profit issue.

2:10:52 PM

RI CHARD FAULKNER, Pr esi dent, St eel Fabri cati on; Pr esi dent,
Al aska Railroad Leasehol ders Association (ARLA), spoke in favor
of HB 357. He said that the ARRC land needs to be sold to
private enterprise. At the present tinme only two percent of the
state's land is in private hands. The rest of the land is
either owned by the state or federal governnent. I n Anchor age
treating the | eased property as fee sinple property is derelict,
he st at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON asked whet her | easehol ders are required
to make any inprovenents to the | and.

MR. FAULKNER answered yes. However, he stated that after the
| ease takes effect, people do not want to make inprovenents due
to the ARRC. He stated that the ARRC does not pay for water and
sewer . He related that his business sits on 8 to 10 acres in
Ship Creek area of Anchorage. He stated that he had a septic
and well system but the ARRC ran the water line from the nmain

street to edge of property and sent him a bill. He
characterized the issue with the ARRC as nore of an economc
devel opnment issue than any other issue. He recomended

transferring the ARRC property to private ownership so

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -21- March 16, 2010



i ndi viduals can inprove the property and increase the tax base
in Anchorage and the state.

2:13:45 PM

CHAIR P. WLSQON, after first determning no one else wished to
testify, closed public testinony on HB 357.

2:14: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PETERSEN asked whether M. Kubitz could answer
guestions about relocating the ARRC i n Fairbanks.

M. Kubitz answered that was not his purview

CHAIR P. WLSON inquired as to whether the ARRC is considering
nmoving its operations in Fairbanks.

PAT GAMBLE, Pr esi dent and CEQ, Al aska Rai | r oad
Corporation, (ARRC) stated that noving the ARRC out of Fairbanks
makes a lot of sense in the abstract. Typically, towns grew up
around the tracks and nmany towns relocated the railroad.
However, relocation is very expensive and the ARRC has
undertaken with the RSDG and the FNSB to reconsider relocating
the railroad in phases fromthe main part of town and to bypass
as nmuch of Fairbanks as it can. He stated that this process is
actually a three phase process to nmake this a reality. The
ARRC s efforts include North Pole and in an effort to relocate,
the ARRC has closed crossings, sonme of which are close to
schools, in order to inprove safety. Sonme hazardous materials
have been haul ed out of residential areas. He characterized the
goal to relocate the railroad as an excellent and worthy goal.
Phase 1 included two neetings with the RSDG Currently, the
ARRC is working to scope Phases 2 and 3 of the project. He
antici pated the ARRC woul d be nore aggressive on the project.

2:17:15 PM

MR. GAMBLE, in response to Chair P. WIson, offered that quite
often "not cooperating” is another way of saying that a
di sagreenent exists over issues. He stated that there are

serious issues to resolve, but he felt that nore progress has
recently been nade. He stated that the former FNSB Mayor signed
a menor andum of agreenent (MOA) that codified a process to allow
the ARRC to coordinate its approach. He assessed the progress
to resolve issues to relocate the ARRC as slow, but steady
progress since the MOA was signed.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -22- March 16, 2010



2:18: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked what type of hazardous waste the
ARRC would find if it relocated the railroad in Fairbanks to
south of Fairbanks He further asked if the existing rail vyard
would need to be paved, if the ARRC would be able to sell the
land, and if the rail yard is a contam nated site.

MR. GAMBLE stated that the Fairbanks railroad sits on an
i ndustri al site. He agreed that Ilikely sone kind of
contam nation is present. He recalled a recent survey conducted
at the railroad yard in Ship Creek in Anchorage. He related
that the survey cost $6 million, but the ARRC did "not find a
snoking gun." He explained that the ARRC would have to do the
same thing in Fairbanks. He said he does not assune the
Fai rbanks property would be considered a "real dirty site,” but
that aspect would need to be dealt with before the rail vyard
could be relocated. He stated that currently, the ARRC is not
aware of any problem noting that the Fairbanks property has not
been surveyed.

[ HB 357 was hel d over.]

HB 267- SNOW MACHI NE USE | N DALTON HWY CORRI DOR

2:19:57 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON announced that the next order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 267, "An Act relating to travel by snow
machine within five mles of the right-of-way of the Janes
Dal t on Hi ghway. "

2:21: 47 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON reported that she has assigned a subconmttee
for HB 267, consisting of Representative Johnson, Petersen, and
T. W son, chaired by Representative T. W son. The
subcommttee will report back to full commttee, she stated.

2:22:37 PM

MARY SI ROKY, Legislative Liaison, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Department of Transportation & Public Facilities (DOT&PF),
expl ai ned that the DOT&PF experts on the Dalton H ghway are not
avai | abl e today. She stated that the DOT&PF is not opposed to
access in the Dalton H ghway Corridor, but doing so would

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 23- March 16, 2010



present additional challenges for the departnent. Openi ng up
the Dalton H ghway would create potential conflicts between
comercial truckers who nove goods and services and recreational
users. One area of conflict would be the roadside pullouts
since currently not many pullouts could accommpdate commerci al
trucks, DOT&PF vehicles, and recreational users. The DOT&PF
requires these pullouts to use as turnarounds to nove equi prment
bet ween the nmaintenance canps. She related the only pullout
really large enough for commercial trucks, the DOT&PF use, and
recreational use is located at Franklin Bluff on the north side
of Atigun Pass. In response to Chair P. WIson, she indicated
her understandi ng that access would stop at Col df oot. Franklin
Bluff is located about 50 to 75 mles north of Atigun Pass,
whi ch is about 350 mles north of the Yukon River.

2:25: 07 PM

M5. SIROKY commented that the DOT&PF will prepare a map for the
subcomm ttee to show the location and size of the existing
pul | out s. She highlighted issues the subcommttee may w sh to
consider as it deliberates on HB 267. The DOT&PF uses high-
speed plows to maintain the Dalton H ghway. Thus, the DOT&PF is
concerned about anyone who may park alongside the Dalton
H ghway. The DOT&PF has a responsibility to plow the roads and
the pullouts and cannot be held responsible for any vehicles
that get "plowed in." She anticipated the types of conplaints
the DOT&PF would likely receive if notorists had to spend hours
digging their vehicle out of snow berns. She pointed out that
the only energency responders currently available to assist
notorists if an accident were to occur is the DOT&PF and the
Al yeska Pipeline Service Conpany. She explained that any
increased tine spent assisting notorists wuld take tinme away
from DOT&PF' s road mai ntenance duties. Another issue that could
arise is the need to supply gasoline to notorists who run out of
gas. In fact, the DOT&PF does not currently have the neans to
collect noney for fuel, she stated. Finally, in the event of
construction for a natural gas pipeline, the DOT&F expects
traffic to increase dranmatically. The antici pated schedule for
road construction would be in the next three to five years to
assist with gearing up to haul goods. She thought that all of
t hese issues could be solved, although sone issues may take sone
time to resol ve.

2:28: 00 PM

M5. SIRCKY, in response to Representative Johnson, explained
that the DOT&PF has seven canps |ocated about every 60 mles

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 24- March 16, 2010



along the Dalton H ghway between Livengood and Deadhorse. I n
further response to Representative Johnson, she explained that
typically two to four people live at each canp, including a
nmechani ¢ and equi pnent operator.

REPRESENTATI VE P. WLSON asked whether the DOT&PF would allow
people to park at the canps.

M5. SIROKY answered no. In further response to Chair P. WIson,
she related that she did not know whether the canps are posted
to prohibit trespassing. She pointed out that the DOI&PF is

responsible for its equipnment, but she did not recall if the
canps were gat ed. She recalled that the canp at Chandalar is
open.

2:29:31 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked if it would sinplify mtters to
create a corridor for parking. He asked if seven access
corridors were created wth parking, safety, and rescue
capabilities, whether it would solve sonme of the problens.

M5. SIROKY offered to consider and discuss this solution wth
t he DOT&PF personnel to identify any conflicts. She thought one
i ssue that could arise would be if too many people wanted to use
t he area. She suggested the subcommttee nay want to consider
l[imting the nunber of people who could use the Dalton H ghway
Corri dor.

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON asked whether the canpground at Arctic
Crcle could be used.

M5. SIROKY responded that the visitor center is not open in the
Wi nter so she speculated that the canpground is not nmaintained
during the wnter. She noted that the canpground is not far
from Col df oot, where many resources are avail abl e.

2:32: 05 PM

BRI AN PERSON, Ph.D., WIldlife Biologist, Departnent of WIldlife
Managenment, North Sl ope Borough (NSB), stated the NSB is opposed
to allowing any part of the five-mle corridor along the Dalton
H ghway for the use of snowrachines. This highway was
originally established to allow production of and service of oi

and gas facilities. The Dalton H ghway was closed to public use
due to the broad justifiable concerns over issues relating to
wildlife har assnent, user conflicts, wildlife violation

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -25- March 16, 2010



concer ns, pi peline security concerns, search and rescue
responsibility, and traffic issues. These visions were legally
chal l enged and ultinmately overturned, but not w thout retaining
some insights for the original plan to protect the land, the
wildlife resource, and the people that traditionally have
depended upon the wuse of the resources. This bill clearly
di srupts these protections w thout any consideration for fiscal
inmpacts to the Alaska State Troopers and DOT&PF. He pointed out
sonme msinformation given during testinony. He reported that
the Central Arctic Caribou Herd 1is not over 80,000 in
popul ation, but is approximtely 67, 000. Further, there is not
any evidence that suggests the herd has exceeded its carrying
capacity or exhausted its range or resources. In fact, passing
HB 267 woul d displace caribou fromits winter range, effectively
restricting its range. The Central Arctic Caribou Herd is in
good health, with over an 80 percent parturition rate and high
calf survival. He offered that energetic demands of wldlife in
the winter and snowmachi ne harassnment to nusk oxen and caribou
woul d be probl ens. He concluded by stating that he has been
fighting simlar bills for the last six or seven years. He
said, "It's just frustrating to see the state with a long chain
of broken prom ses.” He urged nenbers not to open the Dalton
H ghway Corridor. He suggested that people have access to these
| ands and many people truly enjoy the Dalton H ghway Corridor
and the surroundi ng | and.

2:35:11 PM

LI SA HUGHES, Legislative Liaison, Northern Al aska Environnental
Center (NAEC), stated that the NAEC does not support HB 267.
She stated that the Dalton H ghway Corridor has been closed
since the construction of the Trans-Al aska Pipeline System
(TAPS) . This bill would violate a |ongstanding commtnent to
protect wldlife and subsistence use in the North Sl ope. The
Dalton H ghway was built for industrial purposes and not
recreational use. The Dalton Hi ghway supplies the North Sl ope
oil fields, access to the TAPS, countless mning operations, and
a provides a take-off point for comercial guides and tour
oper ators. The road conditions in the winter also provide the
trucking industry with the best opportunity to haul heavy | oads
to Prudhoe Bay. Increased traffic and abandoned snowmachi ne
trailers along the Dalton H ghway would pose a serious hazard
for industrial truck traffic. None of the industries mentioned
are in favor of allowing notorized recreational use in the
Dal ton Hi ghway Corridor. She asked for an assessnent of the
fiscal inpact since there is a conplete |ack of energency and
public safety services in this region. She stated that HB 267

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 26- March 16, 2010



would require increased funding for the Al aska Departnent of
Fish & Gane, Division of WIldlife Conservation and |aw
enforcenent such as the Alaska State Troopers (AST). The DOT&PF
would need to pave, build parking lots, and create additiona

roadsi de pul |l outs. The Departnment of Public Safety (DPS) would
need additional funds to reinstate a year-round AST in Col df oot.

The Northern Al aska Environnmental Center urges the |egislature
to honor its commtnment to protect wildlife and subsistence, as

well as provide a safer environnment for industries and user
groups that wuse this area. She urged nmenbers not to pass HB
267.

2:37:47 PM

REBECCA BENSON stated that she resides at M neral Lake, Al aska.
She testified in opposition to HB 267. She stated that her
famly has hunted in the region for many years. The opportunity
to hunt in the area without conpeting with nmechani zed hunters is
unparal l el ed since alnost all other hunts allow snowrachi ne use
or other off-road vehicles, which have resulted in shorter

hunti ng peri ods. She predicted that if the Dalton H ghway
Corridor is opened, that the hunting opportunities wll
deteriorate. She predicted that the hunts would resenble the

Forty-mle and Nel china hunts, especially since the bag limt in
the Dalton Hi ghway area was recently increased to five caribou

She related that the Forty-mile hunt is a registration hunt,
easily accessible by off-road vehicles (ORV). The Forty-mle
hunt is typically open for three to four days. Last year the
harvest quota was exceeded by a large margin, which resulted in
further restrictions. She suggested that opening the Dalton
Hi ghway Corridor to snowrachine use would create problens.
Proponents argue that nost of the state is open to snowmachi nes
with little damage. However, this statement ignores that non-
not ori zed hunters are being excluded fromthose areas. The hunt
off the Dalton Hi ghway is quite popular anong hunters and peopl e
who ski, wal k, snowshoe, canoe or dogsled in the area. Sone say
this area is not available to average Al askan, but she said she
hoped that nost Al askans can still walk five mles.

2:39:29 PM

ROBERT CAYWOOD said that he has hunted off snowrachi nes and he
t hi nks all Al askans should be all owed to use area.

2:40: 01 PM

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -27- March 16, 2010



STEVE FLORY said he keeps hearing "not in ny backyard." He
related that a huge expanse is closed. Wile the Dalton H ghway
was originally intended for oil and gas use, the state has
expanded and recreational uses need to be spread out further.
He suggested that history changes and the state needs to
recogni ze the change, which may result in nore facilities and
nore opportunities for Alaskans and non-Al askans to use this
ar ea. He said, "W're talking about mllions of acres.” He
suggested that there is plenty of room He further suggested
that nechanized and non-nechanized wuses are not nutually
excl usi ve. People need to learn to tolerate interests and the
state need to grow as a state and should open up sone of the
state.

2:42: 06 PM

WLLIAM LANG related that he has a secondary residence in
W seman, Alaska. He testified in opposition to HB 267. He said
there is an absence of access issues since any Al askan can wal k
fromthe Dalton H ghway to the Bering Sea if they so desire. He
agreed with prior testinony on the bill that the caribou
estimates were overestimated at the |ast hearing. He comment ed
that the Al aska Departnment of Fish & Gane presented an estimte
of 67,000 to the Board of Ganme at its February neeting. He

specul ated that harvest is underestinmated. Since people who
live north of the Yukon River do not need to report caribou
harvest nost of the harvest is unreported. He agreed with the

need for a fiscal note to provide for increased infrastructure
necessary for HB 267. He recalled the Chair nentioning flying
to Prudhoe Bay and driving down the Dalton Hi ghway. He asked
her to imagine this trip wthout any AST stationed north of
Fai rbanks and w thout any energency nedical services except
those provided by Alyeska Pipeline Service Conpany. The current
energency services are intended for the conpany's personnel, he
st at ed. He thought state funding would be needed to provide

additional parking areas and trash receptacles. He expressed
concern about snownachine wuse during years wth little snow
cover. He rem nded people that the Iron Dog Snowrachi ne Race

had little snow cover this year, but people participated and are
notivated to use their snowrachines to hunt or race, even wth
littl e snow cover.

2:44: 32 PM
P.J. SIMON stated that safety is paranount. He described the
Dalton H ghway road conditions, including the scale of the

mountains and sharp turns that truckers carrying |arge anmounts

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 28- March 16, 2010



of fuel nust nake. He cautioned that trucks cannot easily stop
due to the enornous weight. He stressed the safety concerns.
He related that the Dalton H ghway supplies the oil production
wi th needed supplies. He expressed concern over damage to fauna
and flora. He thought a three to five year study should be
acconplished prior to opening the Dalton H ghway Corridor to
snowrachi ne use. He said, "W count on oil as Al askans." He
concluded by stating he is firmy opposed to HB 267.

2:46: 33 PM

JUNE RECOFF stated that she has lived nost of her life in the
Br ooks Range. She stated she has traveled to faraway places
like Africa, but nothing rivals the Central Brooks Range. She
st at ed t hat openi ng t he Dal t on H ghway Corri dor to

i ndi scrimnate snowrachine use at a tinme when the limt for
caribou is five per person would constitute a travesty against
prudent stewardship of Iland and wldlife. The threat of

violence and lack of enforcenent presents a very real issue.
She expressed concern for the wildlife resources if snowrachi nes
are allowed access along the Dalton H ghway Corridor. She al so
expressed concern that local residents will be disenfranchised
since they rely on the wildlife resources. She thought the bill
woul d have irreparable repercussions and create hardships for
future generations. The land and animals have represented and
been synbolic of freedom balance, hope, serenity, and purpose.
She stated that she is opposed to HB 267.

2:49: 04 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON pointed out that this bill opens up the Dalton
Hi ghway Corridor, but the hunting rules will remain sane.

REPRESENTATI VE T. W LSON agr eed.
2:49: 38 PM

DERRI CK M LLER, Staff, Representative Mke Kelly, Alaska State
Legi slature, on behalf of the prinme sponsor, stated that
currently, regulations are in place for the Dalton H ghway
Corridor Managenent Area. These regul ations prohibit notorized
use to transport gane, gane material, hunting material in and
out of the Dalton H ghway Corridor. These regulations would
still renmain under HB 267. In response to Chair P. WIson, he
stated that the Board of Gane oversees hunting regul ations, and
have established regulations to prohibit the use of snowrachi nes

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 29- March 16, 2010



to transport game, ganme material, and gane tools in and out of
t he Dal ton H ghway Corri dor.

CHAIR P. WLSON restated that people still cannot use
snowmachi nes to hunt.

MR. M LLER agr eed.
2:50: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE T. WLSON asked whet her snownmachi nes can recreate
by usi ng snowrachi nes, but cannot use the snowrachi nes to hunt.

CHAIR P. WLSON recalled prior testinony. She said, "W were
told that everything during hunting would be the sane; this was
just not during hunting. So that's not a true statenent.”

MR. MLLER agreed that it is not a true statenent.

CHAIR P. WLSON related her understanding that hunting will not
be the sane. Currently hunters cannot use snownachine if they
are hunting. If HB 267 passes, then hunters can use
snownachi nes.

MR. MLLER replied that this bill does not speak to any hunting
regul ati ons. It does not touch hunting regulations or anything
the Board of Gane oversees. This bill provides access through
the Dalton H ghway Corridor via snowrachi ne. He said, "You
cannot use your snowrachine to transport gane in and out. | t
cannot be used as another tool for hunting."

2:52:20 PM

M CHELLE DEVAUL stated that she has been a tour guide for 12
years. Since 1999, she has been a guide on the Dalton Hi ghway,
traveling from Fairbanks to Deadhorse. She said she works for
second |argest industry, which is the visitor industry. She
said she is passionately "not supportive" of HB 267. She is
opposed to the bill because of the overall negative inpact |ack
of infrastructure and lack of |aw enforcement since an AST is
not assigned to Col df oot. She has often observed vehicles on
the road and is concerned about increased access to the Dalton
H ghway. She stated that when she is on the Dalton H ghway
during the summer and w nter she has observed traffic accidents.
She has even had to take an injured person to a punp station for
energency treatnent. She said that this area is an arctic
desert with six inches of precipitation per year, which is one

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 30- March 16, 2010



reason the Prudhoe Bay oilfield has been restricted and why they
must use ice roads to traverse the renote regions. She reported
that during the summer she has not observed any inpact from the
devel opnent in the region. She related that during 50s and 60s
oil exploration left cat tracks from equi pnent use north of
Atigun Pass. She disagreed that snowmachines would have
decreased inpact since the type of vegetation can take 50 years
to grow. She has observed pernmanent marks on the | andscape.

2:55:26 PM

KENNETH BARBER stated that he would like to have an area that is
accessible to people. He did not think potential accidents or
injuries should be a concern since accidents happen throughout
Al aska. He said he would like to see the Dalton Hi ghway
Corridor open to nore use than just snowrachines. He said he

did not see anything wong with a little scarring.
2:56: 38 PM

CODY STRATHE said that he is opposed to HB 267. He stated that
as a graduate student at the University of Alaska he has
performed extensive archeol ogical research in the Arctic,
including Gates of the Arctic National Park which borders the
Dal ton Hi ghway Corridor. He explained that the majority of
archeol ogical sites are not buried, but are scattered on the
surface since insufficient vegetation exists to rot and cover
the remains. During |ow snow years which often occur north of
the Brooks Range the renmmins can be easily danaged by
snowmachi nes. He thinks there is a gross msconception that
snowrachines will not have an inpact on the | and. He stated
that he owns a snowrachine and has observed damage to his own
| and. He spent the last three years wth a dog sled team at
Gal braith Lake, which has huge w ndswept areas that snowrachi nes
could easily damage and have a great inpact. He stated that he
has hunted caribou in the area. He reiterated that this road
was built for industrial use and not recreational use. He
offered his belief that the Dalton H ghway Corridor area should
be managed to protect delicate ecosystem coastal resources, and
subsi stence rights that were originally established.

2:58: 23 PM
CHAD DI ESI NGER, Manager, Toolik Field State Institute of Arctic
Bi ol ogy, stated that a vast nunber of research plots surround

the station. He said that |ow snow years would be detrinental
to the research plots by snowrachi ne use; the plots represent 30

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -31- March 16, 2010



years worth of research. A second mjor concern is that the
facility has an Emergency Medical Technician (EMI), and during
the sumrer their EMP provides the only energency response now
that the Al aska State Trooper (AST) at Col df oot has been renoved

fromthe post. He expressed concern that the bill does not have
a fiscal note to inprove the energency response capabilities for
increased traffic. He offered to keep his coments short but

related that other comrents nmade by testifiers as valid comments
to consi der

3:00: 22 PM

BARRY VWHI TEHI LL testified that he is a hunter. He is a rifle
hunter and nust wal k, hike, or float to cross the corridor. He
hunts near the Dalton Hi ghway since it is relatively |ow cost,
primarily paid by his own sweat. He finds the |andscape free of
notorized conveyances so the hunt is truly an Al askan
experience. He strongly opposed HB 267. He said it is "just a
foot in the door" to open the Dalton H ghway up to allow other
conveyances and <change the gane laws to allow ORV and
snowrachi nes for hunting.

3:01:46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON pointed out that initially the Al aska
H ghway was an industrial corridor for use exclusively by the
mlitary so it is not unusual to change uses.

3:02: 47 PM

TAQUI LI K HEPA, Director, Departnent of WIdlife Managenent,
North Slope Borough (NSB), stated that she is a Ilifelong

Al askan. She expressed concern for the inpact HB 267 wll| have
on subsistence users in Ganme Managenent 26, in particular, for
residents of Anaktuvuk Pass, Nuiqgsut, and KaktoviKk. She

anticipated a dramatic increase of people would use the Dalton
H ghway and adjacent corridor for recreational uses with passage

of HB 267. The bill will provide easy access to areas inportant
to the residents of the North Slope for subsistence use. She
also anticipated an increase in user conflicts between sport
hunters, recreational users, and |ocal subsistence users. She

outlined potential areas west of highway that could have
devastating inpact on the caribou harvest by residents of
Anakt uvuk Pass area. Residents live a nomadic lifestyle and are
heavi |y dependent on caribou and other gane. When the caribou
are not available and the Dall Sheep and Musk Oxen are heavily
regul ated, famlies in the area will not have sufficient gane to

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 32- March 16, 2010



neet their nutritional needs. She also has heard Nuigsut
residents express concern about recreational wusers on the
Colville River area. She pointed out the intent of Dalton
H ghway or the "Haul Road" is for industrial purposes. Peopl e
were told the Dalton H ghway use would be restricted to protect
subsi st ence use.

3:05:52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked her to provide her witten
t esti nony.

DI RK NI CKI SH, Owner/Qperator, Coyote Air, stated that the DOT&PF
canps |located along the Dalton H ghway are industrial worksites.
The DOT&PF manpower have been cut due to budget constraints in
the past few years and they neither have nmanpower or the
equi pnent to facilitate rescues. The canpground is closed at
Marion Creek during the winter and as of July the US. Park
Service has made their Park Ranger posting a seasonal position

As previously nentioned there is no longer an AST in the area
and it may be md-summer before one is in the area. There is
not any garbage disposal service and the EMS services provided
by the Al yeska Pipeline Services Conpany are voluntary services.
As a small business owner along the Dalton H ghway, he often
picks up trash, helps facilitate rescues, and works on |aw
enforcenent issues with Fairbanks. He stated that he is opposed
to HB 267 and opening the Dalton H ghway until the questions are
answered woul d be negligent.

3:08:15 PM

WADE WLLIS stated that hunters hunt beyond the five-mle
corridor. There is not any long or short-term managenent plan
for the Northern Al aska caribou herd that mgrates along the
Dal ton H ghway Corridor. He anticipated that it would bring
significant inpact to mgration since snowrachi ne use would be
al l owed during the period that caribou are noving to the spring
calving ground and hunting would be allowed in April on the
cal ving ground. The inpact wll be trenendous. The Board of
Ganme just increased the caribou bag limt to 10 in the Northwest
section of Gane Managenent Unit (GWJ) 26-B which would all ow use
of snowmachines. He stated that this is the traditional hunting
grounds of the Nuiqgsut residents. He referred to the coments
made at the Board of Gane neeting. He related that no public
testimony was taken by the board at the neeting wth respect to
the Dalton H ghway, but sent a letter supporting HB 267,
al t hough no testinony was taken. He noted that Ben G ussendorf,

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 33- March 16, 2010



who once served in the legislature, strongly opposed sending the
letter. He suggested that a stakeholder group should be
established to consider opening up that area to trapping. He
offered his belief that a reasonable opportunity for subsistence
should be considered. The "Haul Road" offers inportant
resources to residents who areas rely on trapping. He offered
to submt comments.

3:11: 02 PM

BERNI E HI CKER, Wsenman, Al aska, stated that he has been a
resident of Dalton H ghway Corridor for the past 27 years. He
spoke in opposition to HB 267. Hs famly runs a bed and
breakfast, the Arctic Getaway, which serves about 400 people,
i ncludi ng Al askans, who cone there because of the wlderness.
They can step off the side of the road and be in wlderness
W t hout noi se. He thought it would be a shane to open up the
area for "the fun of a few' to "tear this place up." He hoped
the legislature would keep the area closed to snowrachines.
Many phot ographers conme to photograph animals in close proximty
to the road. It is a great opportunity and the snowrachi nes
would inhibit the ability to participate in that type of
phot ography. He urged nenbers to vote no on HB 267.

3:12: 47 PM

WYN MENEFEE, Chief of Operations, Division of Mning, Land, and
Water, Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR), stated that there
are overlapping restrictions on snowrmchine in the Um at
meri di an. He said that anywhere north of the neridian line
requires a permt for snowrachi ne use.

REPRESENTATIVE P. WLSON asked M. Menefee to identify the
| atitude or |ongitude of the neridian |line.

MR. MENEFEE answered that the area is |ocated above Chandal ar,
in about the upper third of the Dalton H ghway, although he did
not know the exact mleage. He related that anywhere in that
region requires a special-use designation and anyone using a
vehicle must obtain a permt. He said snownachine use would
require a specific authorization any tinme of the year. In
further response to Chair P. WIlson, he stated that currently
the DNR cannot authorize recreational use of a snowrachine.
Under the bill, the DNR could issue permts for snowrachi ne use.
Thus, the bill would broaden what the DNR coul d authori ze.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 34- March 16, 2010



CHAIR P. WLSON related that if HB 267 bill passes the DNR woul d
change its procedures.

MR. MENEFEE answered no, the procedures would not change.
However, it would change what the DNR could authorize. In
further response to Chair P. WIlson, he related that the DNR
cannot currently authorize permts for snowrachine use or for
hunti ng.

3:16: 00 PM

JOY WEBE stated that she works as a "haul road" truck driver.
She stated that she "runs fuel”™ on the Dalton H ghway. | f
sonmeone has an accident and his/her truck runs off the road the
truck will stay there until towing services can arrive from
Fai rbanks. The road barely allows two trucks to pass and it can
be unbelievably icy. She thinks that wolves and subsistence

hunters are doing fine job harvesting the caribou. She rel ated
that the road is open to public, but not for snowrachines.
Peopl e can cross country ski or dog nushers can use the Dalton
H ghway Corri dor. She offered her belief that the caribou herd

woul d be deci mat ed. She related that pull outs are barely
adequate and during stornms are inadequate. North of Arctic
Circle stornms appear suddenly. "There is absolutely no rescue

and in that case would be recovery," she said. She concl uded by
stating that she strongly opposes HB 267.

3:18: 41 PM

M5. WEBE, in response to Chair WIson, suggested that increased
traffic would especially inpact drivers during the wnter since
nost people are unfamliar with the Dalton H ghway and tend to
travel right down the mddle of the road. She related that her
fuel truck weighs between 105,000 to 108,000 pound and she

cannot "stop on a dinme." She explained that she slows down for
cars, but it also very difficult to determne the actual edges
of the road. She offered her belief that only two outhouse

facilities are available on the Dalton H ghway between Col df oot
and Deadhorse, including one at the shelf and one at mle 62.
She noted that she has been afraid to stop at the outhouse at
mle 62 since trash piles up and creates a bear hazard.

3:20: 37 PM

CHAIR P. WLSON asked for information on what would happen if
her truck becane involved in an acci dent.

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 35- March 16, 2010



M5. WEBE answered that if her truck were to hit soneone that
the occupants of the vehicle would not have any chance of
survival so she would rather go into the ditch herself.

3:21: 08 PM

DANE CROWMALEY, Executive Director, Sportsnmen for Fish and
Wildlife (SFFW, stated that the SFFW is a statew de

organi zation represents several t housand Al askans. Their
mssion is to ensure the state has an abundance of resources
avai lable and to provide access to the resources. He stated

that the purpose of the Dalton H ghway Corridor was to not
interfere with subsistence hunting by not allow ng snowrachine

use in the corridor. The assunption has been that access wll
"wreck sonething." Currently, the Dalton H ghway Corridor
managenent is inconsistent since sonme residents are disallowed
access. This bill is not about hunting, but would provide
access to state lands froma state highway. He urged nenbers to
review the statute. He maintained that this bill is not about

hunti ng but is about access to public |and.
3:23:07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expressed concern about the public
safety along the Dalton H ghway Corridor. He hoped that as the
subconmittee perfornms it work that the lives and property of
residents along the Dalton H ghway Corridor will be protected.

MR. CROWLEY offered to send in additional comments.
3:24: 05 PM

CHARLES DERRICK stated that he previously worked on the
TransAl aska pipeline and has traveled nost of the pipeline
| engt h. He said he is retired, owns snow nmachines, a satellite
phone and would like to be able to travel in the early spring
but cannot currently do so. He said he does not wish to hunt,
but would like to do sonme ice fishing and explore some of the
| akes in the Dalton H ghway Corridor. He spoke in favor of HB
267. He asked what neasures the DOT&PF has taken to inprove the
Dal ton Hi ghway, including adding pullouts. He related that he
heard for years that insufficient pullouts and facilities exist
al ong the Dalton H ghway. He did not understand why DOT&PF has
not taken any action to nmake inprovenents.

[ HB 267 was hel d over.]

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE - 36- March 16, 2010



3:27:21 PM
ADJ OURNVENT

There being no further business before the conmttee, the House
nmeeting was adjourned at 3:27 p.m

HOUSE TRA COW TTEE -37- March 16, 2010



